

~~REGULATIONS GOVERNING WRITING INSTRUCTION AND ASSESSMENT POLICY~~

~~PURPOSE~~

~~To update procedures and practices to be followed in support of Policy IGAA.~~

~~INTRODUCTION~~

~~A major goal priority of the Alexandria City Public Schools is to provide a rigorous, relevant, and internationally benchmarked education to enable all students to succeed as citizens in the global community. To be prepared for post-secondary education and a range of potential career pathways, each every student must become proficient in written expression for a range of purposes using a variety of rhetorical domains (i.e., descriptive, narrative, expository, and persuasive writing). Effective writing instruction enables students to:~~

- ~~1. Express their ideas, thoughts, and opinions clearly and effectively.~~
- ~~2. Summarize, synthesize, and evaluate information learned from a variety of sources into a written product.~~
- ~~3. Match writing styles and formats to respond to a specific purpose and intended audience.~~
- ~~4. Develop a deeper understanding of essential knowledge, skills, and procedures in all content areas.~~
- ~~5. Revise and edit all written communications using the principles and rules of Standard English grammar and usage.~~
- ~~6. Progress from dependent writers to independent writers who consistently assess and revise their own writing.~~
- ~~7. Increase students' language proficiency in the use of formal academic language in a variety of forms of written expression.~~
- ~~8. Enhance their reading comprehension through written reflection and analysis.~~

~~TEACHER REQUIREMENTS~~

~~Teacher guidelines for writing instruction and assessment include:~~

- ~~1. Writing in the content areas should be a regular part of all subject areas to reinforce students' understanding of essential knowledge, skills and procedures, including students' reading comprehension, through emphasis upon the reading-writing connection.~~
- ~~2. The writing process (prewriting, drafting, revising, editing, publishing) should be used to help students practice and perfect writing skills. Teachers need to determine which assignments require the completion of all stages of the writing process (versus more informal types of written discourse, such as journal entries).~~

Commented [1]: This regulation and the associated policy will be retired.

Commented [2]: The content is too detailed for a governance document. Suggest pulling the details into a handbook (Literacy in the Classroom or something like that) which provides teachers guidance in supporting both reading and writing through the curriculum.

Commented [3]: I like this idea. This regulation seems extremely outdated given how much has changed since 2015, but this is an important conversation to have.

Commented [4]: From an equity standpoint, I think we want to ensure that all students are having access to high quality writing instruction.

Commented [5]: This regulation and Policy IGAA were created by ACPS. There is no accountability embedded. Should this information be linked to or transferred to the instructional assignments policies for elementary and secondary? We should reach out to the TLL curriculum team for a full review/revision on this one.

Commented [6]: I would agree that this information should be embedded in other policies and likely does not need to be a standalone policy and regulation.

Commented [7]: The term 'requirements' is immediately changed to 'guidelines' in the operational definition. The two should match.

Commented [8]: Again, I am concerned with this language around "the" writing process.

- 47 3. Throughout their school career, students should develop proficiency in major forms of
48 written expression, including narrative, descriptive, expository, procedural, persuasive
49 and literary analysis writing.
- 50
- 51 4. Regular opportunities for students to write should include but not be limited to:
- 52 Formal essays
 - 53 Brief and extended response essay questions
 - 54 Formal and informal written responses to unit essential questions
 - 55 Writer's Workshop
 - 56 Warm-up and activator activities at the beginning of lessons and at key transition
57 points within a lesson
 - 58 Journal writing in all content areas, as appropriate
 - 59 Reader responses to literature, texts, articles and/or other primary and secondary-
60 source documents
 - 61 Directions
 - 62 Letters
 - 63 Science labs
 - 64 Mathematical explanations
 - 65 Social studies document based questions
 - 66 Other forms of written expression, as appropriate
 - 67
 - 68 SEAL Exercises
- 69
- 70 5. Students should engage in regular opportunities for research based writing, including:
- 71 Formulating and investigating a formal research question
 - 72 Using a range of sources to ensure balance and completeness in analysis
 - 73 Constructing and defending a thesis statement
 - 74 Developing a well-organized and fully supported introduction, body, and conclu-
75 sion
 - 76 Using a universally accepted protocol for citing sources
 - 77 Constructing a viable bibliography
- 78
- 79 6. Writing assignments shall receive either formal or informal feedback in a timely
80 manner.
- 81
- 82 7. Writing expectations should be communicated to students through the use of rubrics at
83 the same time as the purpose, timeline and specific criteria for writing assignments are
84 explained.
- 85
- 86 8. Grammar, usage, and mechanics will be taught within the context of authentic writing
87 experiences, as opposed to isolated skill practice.
- 88
- 89 9. The ability to self-assess one's writing is a key skill for students to master. Teachers
90 must model how to revise, edit and provide students with ample opportunities to prac-
91 tice these skills.
- 92

Commented [9]: This is vague and open to interpretation. How does this ensure consistency/a standard expectation for students?

Commented [10]: There may be certain situations in which direct skill instruction might be appropriate.

10. Teachers will prepare students for unit transfer tasks (in alignment with the document "Sequence of Writing Assignments in English, Mathematics, Science, and Social Studies," available on the Curriculum Blackboard website). This preparation should include explicit instruction (including modeling and formative feedback) related to the requirements of specific writing genre required by each task.

- Commented [11]: Is this still current?
- Commented [12]: I do not believe it is.
- Commented [13]: Language is out of date.

11. Writing terminology—including genre descriptions—should be consistent with the document "ACPS Writing Genres: Establishing a Common Language for Transfer Tasks and Writing Across Content Areas," available on the Curriculum Blackboard website.

- Commented [14]: Is this still current?
- Commented [15]: outdated reference

SCHOOL REQUIREMENTS

School guidelines for writing instruction and assessment should include:

1. Writing expectations will be communicated to parents through Back to School Nights, curriculum nights, conferences, newsletters, and/or other forms of communication.

- Commented [16]: Writing expectations should be included in each course syllabus.

2. Writing assignments should be reflected in each quarter's grades.

- Commented [17]: We will want this statement to be in keeping with our grading policy. If taking a standards-based approach to grading, I would envision it being best to report progress on writing development separately and not conflate writing proficiency with reporting student progress towards a different standard.

3. The principal or his/her designee will monitor the appropriate grade level use and completion of writing assignments using the ACPS Measurement Topic Rubrics in alignment with the documents referenced above. Monitoring will be through the standard means of lesson observations and lesson plan reviews.

- Commented [18]: Is this still active?
- Commented [19]: Is this reflective of our practice?
- Commented [20]: It is not still active.
- Commented [21]: Does this happen?
- Commented [22]: outdated reference

4. Teachers will build common expectations within and across grade levels, including shared examination and scoring of student written products to build inter-rater reliability as part of the scoring process. Student exemplars on the Blackboard Canvas Curriculum curriculum resource page will serve as anchors for establishing inter-rater reliability.

5. Specific writing tasks for each curriculum unit will be delineated in the ACPS curriculum guides. A compilation of writing tasks for the English Language Arts, mathematics, science and social studies shall be published on the ACPS website.

- Commented [23]: Are they?

6. Whenever possible, writing assignments should reinforce students' reading comprehension, including reflective and analytical writing in response to fiction and informational text.

- Commented [24]: Could we add some SEAL language throughout this policy? Or include it in one of the bullet points in this last section?
- Commented [25]: This is not all we expect for writing instruction to do. In the primary grades, for example, we also expect writing instruction to reinforce students' multisensory linking of letter-sound connections in the brain. Additionally, the term writing "assignments" is limiting to the ongoing writing work with which we hope our students will engage.

Approved: February 24, 2015